

2019 DRAFTING REQUEST

Bill

For: **Administration-Budget 6-7329** Drafter: **fknepp**
 By: **Kretschmann** Secondary Drafters:
 Date: **2/19/2019** May Contact:

Same as LRB:

Submit via email: **YES**
 Requester's email:
 Carbon copy (CC) to: **fern.knepp@legis.wisconsin.gov**
krista.pleviak@legis.wisconsin.gov
DOASBOStatLanguage@wisconsin.gov

Pre Topic:

DOA:.....Kretschmann, BB0435 -

Topic:

Mental Health and school climate

Instructions:

See attached

Drafting History:

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?	fknepp 2/19/2019	aernstr 2/19/2019			
/P1			mbarman 2/19/2019		State S&L

FE Sent For: **<END>**

Knepp, Fern

From: Hanaman, Cathlene
Sent: Tuesday, February 19, 2019 8:32 AM
To: Knepp, Fern; Pleviak, Krista
Subject: FW: Statutory Language Drafting Request - 2019-21

From: Kretschmann, Kyle - DOA <Kyle.Kretschmann@wisconsin.gov>
Sent: Monday, February 18, 2019 5:35 PM
To: Hanaman, Cathlene <Cathlene.Hanaman@legis.wisconsin.gov>
Cc: Hynek, Sara - DOA <Sara.Hynek@wisconsin.gov>; Kretschmann, Kyle - DOA <Kyle.Kretschmann@wisconsin.gov>
Subject: Statutory Language Drafting Request - 2019-21

Biennial Budget: 2019-21

Topic: Mental Health and School Climate

Tracking Code: BB0435

SBO Team: EWD

SBO Analyst: Kretschmann, Kyle
Phone: 608-266-8593
E-mail: kyle.kretschmann@wisconsin.gov

Agency Acronym: 255

Agency Number: 255

Priority: High

Intent:

Combine drafts LRB-0519/P1, LRB-0520/P2 and LRB-0521/P1 into a single draft related to mental health.

Attachments: False

Please send completed drafts to SBOSatlanguage@spsmail.enterprise.wistate.us



State of Wisconsin
2019 - 2020 LEGISLATURE

LRB-2137?

1/1
FFK
9/1

In 2-19

DOA:.....Kretschmann, BB0435 - Mental Health and school climate

FOR 2019-2021 BUDGET -- NOT READY FOR INTRODUCTION

no gen

1 AN ACT ...; relating to: the budget.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

*** ANALYSIS FROM -0519/P1 ***

1. Mental health programs;

aid for pupil services professionals

**EDUCATION
PRIMARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION**

Under current law, DPI must make payments to school districts, independent charter schools, and private schools participating in a parental choice program that increased the amount they spent to employ, hire, or retain social workers during the two previous school years (eligible local education agency). Under current law, DPI first pays each eligible local education agency 50 percent of the amount by which the eligible local education agency increased its expenditures for social workers over the previous two school years. If, after making these payments, there is money remaining in the appropriation for this aid program, DPI makes additional payments to eligible local education agencies. The amount of these additional payments is determined based on the amount remaining in the appropriation and the amount spent by eligible local education agencies to employ, hire, and retain social workers during the previous school year.

This bill expands eligibility for the first round of payments under this aid program to include increased spending on school counselors, school social workers, school psychologists, or school nurses, or any combination thereof (pupil services professionals), during the previous two school years. Additionally, the bill expands eligibility for the second round of payments to any school district, independent

charter school, or private school participating in a parental choice program that made expenditures to employ, hire, or retain pupil services professionals during the previous school year. In other words, for the second round of payments, the bill eliminates the requirement that a school district, independent charter school, or private school increased its expenditures on pupil services professionals.

***** ANALYSIS FROM -0520/P2 *****

EDUCATION

PRIMARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

2. Mental health and school climate; training and grants

Under current law, DPI must provide trainings to school districts and independent charter schools on three specific evidence-based strategies to address student mental health: Screening, Brief Interventions, and Referral to Treatment; Trauma Sensitive Schools; and Youth Mental Health First Aid. Under the bill, DPI must provide trainings on mental health, school safety, and improving school climate, including training on the three evidence-based strategies listed above. In addition, the bill requires DPI to award grants to the Wisconsin Safe and Healthy Schools Training and Technical Assistance Center, Wisconsin Family Ties, Inc., and the Center for Suicide Awareness.

***** ANALYSIS FROM -0521/P1 *****

EDUCATION

PRIMARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

3. Bullying prevention grants

This bill requires DPI to annually award a bullying prevention grant to the nonprofit organization that received the grant in the 2017-18 and 2018-19 school years.

For further information see the *state and local* fiscal estimate, which will be printed as an appendix to this bill.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

- 1 ✓ SECTION 1. 20.255 (1) (ep) of the statutes is amended to read:
- 2 20.255 (1) (ep) Mental health and school climate training program programs
- 3 and grants. The amounts in the schedule for the mental health and school climate
- 4 training program programs under s. ~~115.28 (63)~~ 115.362 (1) and to award grants
- 5 under s. 115.362 (2).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

- 6 ✓ SECTION 2. 20.255 (2) (da) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.255 (2) (da) *Aid for school mental health programs.* The amounts in the
2 schedule for aid to ~~school districts and independent charter schools~~ employ, hire, and
3 retain pupil services professionals under s. 115.364.

4 ✓ SECTION 3. 115.28 (45) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 115.28 (45) GRANTS FOR BULLYING PREVENTION. From the appropriation under
6 s. 20.255 (3) (eb), annually award grants a grant to a the nonprofit organization, as
7 defined in s. 108.02 (19), that received an award under this subsection in the 2017-18
8 and 2018-19 school years to provide training and an online bullying prevention
9 curriculum for pupils in grades kindergarten to 8.

10 ✓ SECTION 4. 115.28 (63) (title) of the statutes is renumbered 115.362 (title) and
11 amended to read:

12 **115.362 (title) Mental health and school climate training program**
13 **programs and grants.**

14 ✓ SECTION 5. 115.28 (63) of the statutes is renumbered 115.362 (1), and 115.362
15 (1) (intro.), as renumbered, is amended to read:

16 115.362 (1) (intro.) ~~Establish~~ The department shall establish a mental health
17 training support program under which the department provides training on pupil
18 mental health, strategies to improve school climate, and school safety. The
19 department shall provide training on all of the following evidence-based strategies
20 related to addressing mental health issues in schools to school district staff and
21 instructional staff of charter schools under s. 118.40 (2r) or (2x):

22 ✓ SECTION 6. 115.362 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

23 115.362 (2) From the appropriation under s. 20.255 (1) (ep), the department
24 shall annually award all of the following:

1 (a) A grant to the Wisconsin Safe and Healthy Schools Training and Technical
2 Assistance Center.

3 (b) A grant to Wisconsin Family Ties, Inc., to train individuals to help families
4 understand and access mental health services that are available to children in school
5 and in the community.

6 (c) A grant to the Center for Suicide Awareness, Inc., to support staff, training,
7 and expenses related to operating a text-based suicide prevention program.

8 ✓ **SECTION 7.** 115.362 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

9 115.362 (3) The department may promulgate rules to implement and
10 administer this section.

11 ✓ **SECTION 8.** 115.364 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 115.364 (1) (a) "Eligible independent charter school" is a school under contract
13 with one of the entities under s. 118.40 (2r) (b) 1. or with the director under s. 118.40
14 (2x) that increased the amount it expended in the preceding school year to employ,
15 hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals over the amount it
16 expended in the school year immediately preceding the preceding school year to
17 employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals.

18 ✓ **SECTION 9.** 115.364 (1) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 115.364 (1) (am) "Eligible private school" means a private school participating
20 in a parental choice program under s. 118.60 or 119.23 that increased the amount it
21 expended in the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil
22 services professionals over the amount it expended in the school year immediately
23 preceding the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil
24 services professionals.

25 ✓ **SECTION 10.** 115.364 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 115.364 (1) (b) "Eligible school district" is a school district that increased the
2 amount it expended in the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social~~
3 ~~workers~~ pupil services professionals over the amount it expended in the school year
4 immediately preceding the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social~~
5 ~~workers~~ pupil services professionals.

6 ✓ SECTION 11. 115.364 (1) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

7 115.364 (1) (c) "Pupil services professional" means a school counselor, school
8 social worker, school psychologist, or school nurse.

9 ✓ SECTION 12. 115.364 (2) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 115.364 (2) (a) 1. Subject to par. (b), from the appropriation under s. 20.255 (2)
11 (da), pay to an eligible school district an amount equal to 50 percent of the amount
12 by which the school district increased its expenditures in the preceding school year
13 to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals over the amount
14 it expended in the school year immediately preceding the preceding school year to
15 employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals.

16 ✓ SECTION 13. 115.364 (2) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

17 115.364 (2) (a) 2. Subject to par. (b), from the appropriation under s. 20.255 (2)
18 (da), pay to an eligible independent charter school an amount equal to 50 percent of
19 the amount by which the independent charter school increased its expenditures in
20 the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services
21 professionals over the amount it expended in the school year immediately preceding
22 the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services
23 professionals.

24 ✓ SECTION 14. 115.364 (2) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:



State of Wisconsin
2019 - 2020 LEGISLATURE

LRB-2137/P1
FFK:all

DOA:.....Kretschmann, BB0435 - Mental Health and school climate

FOR 2019-2021 BUDGET -- NOT READY FOR INTRODUCTION

1 **AN ACT ...; relating to:** the budget.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

EDUCATION

PRIMARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

1. Mental health programs; aid for pupil services professionals

Under current law, DPI must make payments to school districts, independent charter schools, and private schools participating in a parental choice program that increased the amount they spent to employ, hire, or retain social workers during the two previous school years (eligible local education agency). Under current law, DPI first pays each eligible local education agency 50 percent of the amount by which the eligible local education agency increased its expenditures for social workers over the previous two school years. If, after making these payments, there is money remaining in the appropriation for this aid program, DPI makes additional payments to eligible local education agencies. The amount of these additional payments is determined based on the amount remaining in the appropriation and the amount spent by eligible local education agencies to employ, hire, and retain social workers during the previous school year.

This bill expands eligibility for the first round of payments under this aid program to include increased spending on school counselors, school social workers, school psychologists, or school nurses, or any combination thereof (pupil services professionals), during the previous two school years. Additionally, the bill expands

eligibility for the second round of payments to any school district, independent charter school, or private school participating in a parental choice program that made expenditures to employ, hire, or retain pupil services professionals during the previous school year. In other words, for the second round of payments, the bill eliminates the requirement that a school district, independent charter school, or private school increased its expenditures on pupil services professionals.

2. *Mental health and school climates; training and grants*

Under current law, DPI must provide trainings to school districts and independent charter schools on three specific evidence-based strategies to address student mental health: Screening, Brief Interventions, and Referral to Treatment; Trauma Sensitive Schools; and Youth Mental Health First Aid. Under the bill, DPI must provide trainings on mental health, school safety, and improving school climate, including training on the three evidence-based strategies listed above. In addition, the bill requires DPI to award grants to the Wisconsin Safe and Healthy Schools Training and Technical Assistance Center, Wisconsin Family Ties, Inc., and the Center for Suicide Awareness.

3. *Bullying prevention grants*

This bill requires DPI to annually award a bullying prevention grant to the nonprofit organization that received the grant in the 2017-18 and 2018-19 school years.

For further information see the *state and local* fiscal estimate, which will be printed as an appendix to this bill.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. 20.255 (1) (ep) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 20.255 (1) (ep) *Mental health and school climate training program programs*
3 *and grants*. The amounts in the schedule for the mental health *and school climate*
4 *training program programs* under s. 115.28 (63) *115.362 (1) and to award grants*
5 *under s. 115.362 (2)*.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

6 SECTION 2. 20.255 (2) (da) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 20.255 (2) (da) *Aid for school mental health programs*. The amounts in the
8 schedule for aid to school districts and independent charter schools *employ, hire, and*
9 *retain pupil services professionals* under s. 115.364.

1 **SECTION 3.** 115.28 (45) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 115.28 (45) GRANTS FOR BULLYING PREVENTION. From the appropriation under
3 s. 20.255 (3) (eb), annually award grants a grant to a the nonprofit organization, as
4 defined in s. 108.02 (19), that received an award under this subsection in the 2017-18
5 and 2018-19 school years to provide training and an online bullying prevention
6 curriculum for pupils in grades kindergarten to 8.

7 **SECTION 4.** 115.28 (63) (title) of the statutes is renumbered 115.362 (title) and
8 amended to read:

9 **115.362 (title) Mental health and school climate training program**
10 **programs and grants.**

11 **SECTION 5.** 115.28 (63) of the statutes is renumbered 115.362 (1), and 115.362
12 (1) (intro.), as renumbered, is amended to read:

13 115.362 (1) (intro.) Establish The department shall establish a mental health
14 training support program under which the department provides training on pupil
15 mental health, strategies to improve school climate, and school safety. The
16 department shall provide training on all of the following evidence-based strategies
17 related to addressing mental health issues in schools to school district staff and
18 instructional staff of charter schools under s. 118.40 (2r) or (2x):

19 **SECTION 6.** 115.362 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

20 115.362 (2) From the appropriation under s. 20.255 (1) (ep), the department
21 shall annually award all of the following:

22 (a) A grant to the Wisconsin Safe and Healthy Schools Training and Technical
23 Assistance Center.

1 (b) A grant to Wisconsin Family Ties, Inc., to train individuals to help families
2 understand and access mental health services that are available to children in school
3 and in the community.

4 (c) A grant to the Center for Suicide Awareness, Inc., to support staff, training,
5 and expenses related to operating a text-based suicide prevention program.

6 **SECTION 7.** 115.362 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

7 115.362 (3) The department may promulgate rules to implement and
8 administer this section.

9 **SECTION 8.** 115.364 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 115.364 (1) (a) "Eligible independent charter school" is a school under contract
11 with one of the entities under s. 118.40 (2r) (b) 1. or with the director under s. 118.40
12 (2x) that increased the amount it expended in the preceding school year to employ,
13 hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals over the amount it
14 expended in the school year immediately preceding the preceding school year to
15 employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals.

16 **SECTION 9.** 115.364 (1) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 115.364 (1) (am) "Eligible private school" means a private school participating
18 in a parental choice program under s. 118.60 or 119.23 that increased the amount it
19 expended in the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil
20 services professionals over the amount it expended in the school year immediately
21 preceding the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil
22 services professionals.

23 **SECTION 10.** 115.364 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 115.364 (1) (b) "Eligible school district" is a school district that increased the
25 amount it expended in the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social~~

1 ~~workers~~ pupil services professionals over the amount it expended in the school year
2 immediately preceding the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social~~
3 ~~workers~~ pupil services professionals.

4 **SECTION 11.** 115.364 (1) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

5 115.364 (1) (c) "Pupil services professional" means a school counselor, school
6 social worker, school psychologist, or school nurse.

7 **SECTION 12.** 115.364 (2) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

8 115.364 (2) (a) 1. Subject to par. (b), from the appropriation under s. 20.255 (2)
9 (da), pay to an eligible school district an amount equal to 50 percent of the amount
10 by which the school district increased its expenditures in the preceding school year
11 to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals over the amount
12 it expended in the school year immediately preceding the preceding school year to
13 employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals.

14 **SECTION 13.** 115.364 (2) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 115.364 (2) (a) 2. Subject to par. (b), from the appropriation under s. 20.255 (2)
16 (da), pay to an eligible independent charter school an amount equal to 50 percent of
17 the amount by which the independent charter school increased its expenditures in
18 the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services
19 professionals over the amount it expended in the school year immediately preceding
20 the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services
21 professionals.

22 **SECTION 14.** 115.364 (2) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

23 115.364 (2) (a) 3. Subject to par. (b), from the appropriation under s. 20.255 (2)
24 (da), pay to an eligible private school an amount equal to 50 percent of the amount
25 by which the private school increased its expenditures in the preceding school year

1 to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals over the amount
2 it expended in the school year immediately preceding the preceding school year to
3 employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil services professionals.

4 **SECTION 15.** 115.364 (2) (b) 2. a. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 115.364 (2) (b) 2. a. Subject to subd. 2. b., if, after making the payments
6 required under par. (a), moneys remain in the appropriation account under s. 20.255
7 (2) (da), the state superintendent shall reimburse eligible school districts, private
8 schools participating in a parental choice program under s. 118.60 or 119.23, and
9 independent charter schools under contract with one of the entities under s. 118.40
10 (2r) (b) 1. or with the director under s. 118.40 (2x) for an amount equal to
11 expenditures made by the school district, private school, or independent charter
12 school in the preceding school year to employ, hire, or retain ~~social workers~~ pupil
13 services professionals less the any amount of increased expenditures for which the
14 school district, private school, or independent charter school was reimbursed under
15 par. (a).

16 **SECTION 16.** 115.364 (2) (b) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

17 115.364 (2) (b) 2. b. If the appropriation under s. 20.255 (2) (da) in any fiscal
18 year is insufficient to pay the full amount of aid under subd. 2. a., the state
19 superintendent shall prorate state aid payments among the school districts, private
20 schools, and independent charter schools eligible for the aid.

21 (END)